
INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21 January 2019

Dear Councillor

A Meeting of the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee will be held in 
Committee Room 1 - Marmion House on Tuesday, 29th January, 2019 at 6.00 pm. 
Members of the Committee are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

A G E N D A

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)

3 Declarations of Interest 

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (personal and/or 
personal and prejudicial) in any matters which are to be considered at this 
meeting.

When Members are declaring a personal interest or personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of which they have dispensation, they should 
specify the nature of such interest.  Members should leave the room if they 
have a personal and prejudicial interest in respect of which they do not 
have a dispensation.  

4 Update from Chair 

(To receive an update from the Chair)

5 Responses to reports of the Infrastructure Safety and Growth Committee 

(Update on responses received to Reports of the Infrastructure Safety and 
Growth Committee)

6 Considerations of matters referred to the Infrastructure Safety and Growth 
Committee from Cabinet 

(Discussion item)

7 Interim update on Tamworth Castle (Pages 11 - 14)

(Report of the Assistant Director, Growth and Regeneration)

8 Tamworth Infrastructure and Roads 

(Discussion item)

9 2018/19 Forward Plan 

(Discussion item – link to the Forward Plan attached)

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=218&RP=120

10 Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan (Pages 15 - 
16)

(Update and discussion of the Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny 
Committee Work Plan)

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk 

http://democracy.tamworth.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=218&RP=120


preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting.  We can then endeavour to ensure that any 
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: S Goodall, M Bailey, R Bilcliff, T Clements, J Faulkner, R Kingstone, 
J Oates, M Oates and Dr S Peaple



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND 
GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

HELD ON 9th JANUARY 2019

PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors M Bailey, R Bilcliff, 
T Clements, J Faulkner, R Kingstone, J Oates and Dr S Peaple

CABINET: Councillor M Cook

The following officers were present: Tina Mustafa (Assistant Director 
Neighbourhoods), Paul Weston (Assistant Director Assets), Lee Birch (Housing 
Options Manager) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic and Elections Officer)

27 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M Oates.

28 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the previous Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 23rd October 2018 were approved and signed as a 
correct record.

(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor Dr S Peaple)

29 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There  were no Declarations of Interest

30 UPDATE FROM CHAIR 

There was no update from the Chair, other than items which would be covered 
under the Work Plan.

31 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & 
GROWTH COMMITTEE 

None.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

9 January 2019

2

32 CONSIDERATIONS OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE 
SAFETY AND GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET 

None.

33 COMMUNITY ALARM SERVICE MONITORING AT SHELTERED HOUSING 
SCHEMES 

The Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and Neighbourhoods introduced the 
Assistant Director – Neighbourhoods and Housing Options Manager who 
provided a presentation to the Committee on Sheltered Housing – 24 Hour 
Community Lifeline Services.

The Housing Options Manager provided an overview of the 24 hour Community 
Lifeline Service, which was a 24 hour/ 365 days of the year lifeline service 
available to all 365 sheltered households and which comprised a call handling 
services for:

 Sheltered lifeline pull cords, pendants, smoke detectors, fire alarms and 
door entry system;

 High rise lift activation alarm and smoke detectors in basement and 
storage areas;

 Council staff lone working monitoring.

It was reported that this service had been out-sourced to Welbeing (Wealden and 
Eastbourne Lifeline) in 2011 and this service had been fully reviewed in 
2015/2016 following a change to the Government funding of the service, which 
had led to the introduction of a self-financing model.  During 2018 a further review 
by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) had 
been launched as well as the Council undertaking a peer review of this service to 
assess its fitness for purpose.

The Assistant Director – Neighbourhoods reported that this service was due to be 
re-procured, and that the following proposals would be brought forward to Cabinet 
at its next meeting:

 To authorise the re-procurement of the service, utilising the Northern 
Housing Consortium framework, with delegation of the final contract award 
to be given to the Executive Director – Communities and Portfolio Holder 
for Neighbourhoods and Communities;

 To authorise the extension of the existing contract for continuity of service 
during the period of re-procurement;

 To authorise the deferment of charges to service users whilst further 
review and consideration was undertaken;

 To agree the Peer review Action Plan.

The Assistant Director – Neighbourhoods updated the Committee on the Peer 
Review undertaken by EROSH, the national consortium for older people’s 
housing and support services.  Their review highlighted that the current service 
had highly effective leadership, had strong satisfaction levels from users, 
delivered robust safeguarding, that value for money could be clearly evidenced, 
as well quality assurance, and that the service was people focussed and 

Page 6



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

9 January 2019

3

supported independent living.  In terms of opportunities for improvement, the 
areas identified included further detail in capital investment planning, the potential 
to expand the services, for example to high rise accommodation and delivering 
further benefits by increased digitisation of the service.

Following questions from Members of the Committee, the Housing Options 
Manager reported that the benefits of the triage process and assessment of calls 
had supported people to live independently; the Assistant Director – 
Neighbourhoods reported that the MHCLG review had impacted on the 
procurement process, as initially it was expected that the results of that review 
would have been available earlier; and also that the key threat to the service was 
in terms of funding.

The Committee requested further clarification on key performance indicators in 
terms of the average response time to calls, how any extension of the service 
could be achieved, and how service users’ data is protected.  It was reported that 
the Housing Options Manager would respond on the average response time to 
calls, and that consideration would be given to extending the service through the 
procurement process.  The Housing Options Manager explained the privacy 
impact assessment and consent process undertaken with tenants to ensure that 
all data requirements were met and that all data was regularly updated.  The 
Committee considered the possibilities for extending the service whilst 
maintaining its personalised service to users, as well as the opportunities which 
improved digitisation could provide.  The Committee further highlighted the need 
to understand the demographic and the impact this could have over time on the 
service.

Resolved that the Committee supported and endorsed the proposals within the 
presentation on Sheltered Housing – 24 Hour Community Lifeline Services.

(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor J Faulkner)

The Committee thanked the Assistant Director – Neighbourhoods and Housing 
Options Manager for their presentation who then left the meeting.

34 FIRE SAFETY UPDATE 

The Assistant Director – Assets provided a Fire Safety update, which summarised 
the progress made against the action plan which had been considered by Cabinet 
in October 2017 together with the Council Tenants Fire Safety Policy 2017-2020.  
In particular the Assistant Director – Assets provided an update on the approach 
to Fire Risk Assessments and the appointment of Graham Environmental 
Services as supplier of the Compliance contract and their work on Fire Risk 
Assessments.  Furthermore it was reported that work to install sprinklers had 
commenced in the demonstration flat, and that mobility scooter guidance and 
policy in respect of fire safety standards had been developed.

Councillor J Oates left the meeting.

Page 7



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

9 January 2019

4

The Assistant Director – Assets highlighted that the Government report, Building 
a Safer Future, whilst still a discussion document, looked to be sign-posting more 
stringent fire safety obligations, which could impact upon both landlords and 
tenants.   

The Assistant Director – Assets reported that the Council had developed a strong 
working relationship with Staffordshire Fire and Rescue who provided Home Fire 
Safety services to residencies in Tamworth.  Where necessary, tenants were 
directed to Staffordshire Fire and Rescue for fire safety advice.

The Committee discussed the issues raised by the charging and storage of 
mobility scooters in Council owned stock and also the importance of door 
closures as a fire safety measure, and whether there were any potential 
alternatives available.  The Assistant Director – Assets reported that work 
continued to ensure that the fire safety importance of door closures was 
communicated to residents.  

Councillor M Bailey left the meeting.

The Committee thanked the Assistant Director – Assets for the report and for 
attending the Committee.

Resolved that the report be endorsed and that a further update be provided to 
the Committee once there was clarity on the scope and impact of the legislative 
changes as a result of the Government’s Building a Safer Future report.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and Neighbourhoods and the Assistant 
Director – Assets left the meeting.

35 2018/19 FORWARD PLAN 

No items were identified from the Forward Plan for consideration by this 
Committee.

36 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 
PLAN 

The Chair reported that he had recently received a response from Staffordshire 
County Council to the Committee’s questions on Tamworth Infrastructure and 
Roads, which he would circulate to Committee members.  It was agreed that the 
Committee should consider the responses from Staffordshire County Council at 
its next meeting on 29 January 2019.  

The Committee considered that the item on crime figures for Tamworth be added 
to the agenda for the meeting on 2 April, and an invitation should be extended to 
Staffordshire Police to attend that meeting.

The Committee considered the Work Plan and agreed to update the Work Plan 
as shown below.  

Page 8



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth 
Scrutiny Committee

9 January 2019

5

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan

Chair 

Work Plan 2018 - 2019

DATE SUBJECT
29 January Castle update - interim
29 January Tamworth Infrastructure & Roads - discussion

TBC – 2 April Additional PSPOs
2 April Crime Figures for Tamworth – to invite a rep 

of Staffordshire Police to attend
TBC CCTV Usage
TBC Uber – Licensing
TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety)
TBC Street Cleansing (Partnering)
TBC Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
TBC Review Local & County Plans

September 2019 Castle –12 month review
When clarity on new 

legislation
Fire Safety update

TBC 2019 Electric Vehicle Charging

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings

Tuesday 29th January 2019

Tuesday 2nd April 2019

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 29 JANUARY 2019

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT
 DIRECTOR GROWTH AND REGENERATION

INTERIM UPDATE ON TAMWORTH CASTLE

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None

PURPOSE

Scrutiny Committees have been receiving regular reports and briefings regarding the delivery 
of the Castle and collections service for a number of years.

The last report was on 13th September 2018 at which it was resolved:

That Scrutiny;
 endorse the work done to date and recommend that Cabinet accept the proposed 

recommendations as detailed in the report;
 recommend to Cabinet that it investigate a commercial decision on the Heritage 

Day costing structure;
 receive an interim progress report on the short term changes delivered, including 

online ticket sales, within four months;
 receive a full review on the impact of the changes delivered within twelve months.

This report provides an interim progress report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that:
1. members note the contents of the report and progress made to date;
2. the Chair of this Committee presents the report to Cabinet along with the 

views of this Committee.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Following the Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny on 13th September 2018 in which 
the Committee endorsed the work done to date and recommended that Cabinet accept the 
proposals, Cabinet considered a report on Thursday 27th September 2018. It was resolved:

That Cabinet
 Approved the proposed changes as detailed in the report to the general public 

opening hours of the castle and that they commence in April 2019

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



 Gave approval for the Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration to develop a 
new staff structure and operating method for consideration and approval by 
Appointments and Staffing Committee

 Members endorsed the commencement of formal consultation with staff / trade 
unions with regards to the implementation of a new staffing structure.

 Agreed that any investment requirements for the castle would be considered as 
part of the Capital Budget process on a return on investment basis.

 Gave approval for the Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration to prepare and 
enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the Friends of Tamworth Castle 
and Museum

 That the following recommendations from Infrastructure Safety & Growth Scrutiny 
Committee (IS&G Committee) be approved:

o That Cabinet investigated a commercial decision on the Heritage Day 
costing structure

o That Cabinet received within 4 months an interim progress report on the 
short terms changes delivered by the implementation of the review, 
including online ticket sales

o That Cabinet received within 12 months a full review on the impact of the 
changes delivered by the implementation of the review.

Since then a number of work streams have been progressed as follows.

a) Online Ticket Sales

The Councils ICT department have identified a system that can be used to facilitate on line 
sales and have worked on putting in place the processes to enable the website, the system 
and the front of house system to operate. The website element of the process is now 
complete and full testing of the system is ongoing and it is hoped that online ticket sales will 
be live by early February.

ICT and the Castle team will review performance and take up of the on-line system and 
consider the need to make any changes after a few months, including the need for hardware 
investment for peak time transactions and potentially self-service.

b) Guidebook

This is currently at the printers and will be available in the shop by 15th February 2019.

c) Commercialisation

As previously discussed at this committee, an expected outcome of the service review is to 
increase capacity to consider commercial opportunities. Notwithstanding that the service 
review has not yet been completed, the team have already stated work developing ideas 
around the events.

d) Marketing

Since the September meeting there has been an increase focus on on-line and social media 
marketing and promotion. On twitter the number of follows has increased from Q1 to Q3 of 
3.6%. On Facebook, the number of likes has increased from Q1 to Q3 of 6%. The number of 
website users has increased from Q1 to Q3 by 28.4% and the number of page views has 
increased from Q1 to Q3 by 13.6%.  The total number of unique users of the Castle web 
pages for 2018 was 61,392. Over 36% of visits were referred from Facebook which was the 
highest referrer, highlighting the importance of social media as a driver for website traffic. 

e) Engagement with ‘Friends of Tamworth Castle’

The assistant director met the Chair and a number of members of the board in November 
2018. It was agreed that there was a number of opportunities through working together for 
mutual benefit.

Page 12



f) Service Review

The service review is on-going and consideration is being given to what options could be. 
Trade Union and staff have been spoken to and this will inform these considerations. 
Progress on this is linked to the worker corporate management review process that is 
ongoing.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

It is anticipated that changes to staffing structure and operating method may lead to a small 
saving. However, until the process of consultation and development of a model has begun it 
is not possible to detail any changes

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

1. The Castle runs the risk of standing still and losing custom and confidence of the market 
without the investment in online ticket sales and comprehensive IT infrastructure.
2. Loss of confidence and lack of investment could lead to lower customer visits and loss of 
income
3. Without continued growth the infrastructure of the Castle and its preservation could 
become an issue.
4. The review of the castle has been ongoing for some time and further delays could affect 
staff morale and retention.
5. Developing and implementing the proposals could impact on staff morale. This will be 
mitigated through briefing staff and engaging with them through the process.
6. The change in operating hours does not lead to demand shift. This will be mitigated 
through marketing and promotion activity.

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

Consideration of the impact of the proposals on equalities will be undertaken during their 
formulation. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The Castle needs to make necessary changes to the way it operates to ensure it remains 
competitive in its field and if possible increase the number of visitors. Increased visitor 
numbers and secondary spend will ensure the Castle has greater longevity as an attraction 
and the potential to deliver ongoing conservation of the building.

Increasing opportunities for the public to visit and ensuring that the service is run effectively 
and cost efficiently, will enable the Castle over time to reduce its subsidy by Tamworth 
Borough Council as in the past years with increased customer numbers.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

Castle Review

REPORT AUTHOR

Matthew Bowers, Assistant Director Growth and Regeneration

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

Information and formal responses to scrutiny committee questions have been presented at 5 
scrutiny meetings commencing on 17th January 2017 when a briefing note from the Castle 

Page 13



provided answers to questions posed by the committee. A walkabout question and answer 
meeting at the Castle with the then portfolio holder was undertaken on 10th February 2017 
followed by further responses to an additional set of questions from the committee on 11th 
April 2017. Further meetings were also held in both September and November of that year. 

Report to Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny, 13th September, 2018
Report to Cabinet, 27th September, 2018

APPENDICES

None

Page 14



Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan

Work Plan 2018 - 2019

DATE SUBJECT
29 January Castle update - interim
29 January Tamworth Infrastructure & Roads - discussion

TBC – 2 April Additional PSPOs
2 April Crime Figures for Tamworth – to invite a rep 

of Staffordshire Police to attend
TBC CCTV Usage
TBC Uber – Licensing
TBC People Helping People ( Community Safety)
TBC Street Cleansing (Partnering)
TBC Anti-Social Behaviour Policy
TBC Review Local & County Plans

September 2019 Castle –12 month review
When clarity on new 

legislation
Fire Safety update

TBC 2019 Electric Vehicle Charging

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee 
Meetings

Tuesday 29th January 2019

Tuesday 2nd April 2019

Page 15

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Interim update on Tamworth Castle
	10 Infrastructure Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Plan

